
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, August 05, 2021

7 PM, Via Teleconference or Other Electronic Means Only
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - Planning Commission members will participate by telephone or other electronic means
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021. Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a
remote location may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number:
1-312-626-6799, Webinar ID: 823 0778 8687 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82307788687.  Individuals wishing to monitor the meeting remotely may do
so in real time by watching the livestream of the meeting on North Oaks Channel 16 and on the City’s
website. 

1.  Call To Order

2.  Roll Call 

3.  Pledge

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Planning Commission
during the public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action
will be taken by the Commission on items raised during the public comment period unless the item
appears as an agenda item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Approval of Previous Month's Minutes
6a.  Approval of Planning Commission Meeting minutes of June 24, 2021

Planning Commission Minutes 06.24.21.pdf

7.  Business Action Items
6a.Public Hearing - review of 12 Cherrywood Circle - CUP for Fill Grading and Excess Garage Space of 1,500.

Discussion and possible action on CUP.
12 CHerrywood CIrcle.pdf

CUP - Cover Letter.pdf

A201 - First Floor Plan.pdf

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1004148/Planning_Commission_Minutes_06.24.21.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003826/12_CHerrywood_CIrcle.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003833/CUP_-_Cover_Letter.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003827/A201_-_First_Floor_Plan.pdf


Planning Commission August 05, 2021

2

grading_diagrams.pdf

renderings.pdf

Staff report 12 Cherrywood fill cupkk.pdf

Staff report 12 Cherrywood- Garage CUPkk.pdf

6b.Public Hearing - Review of CUP for 2 Lost Rock - Fill in excess of 100 cubic yards. Discussion and possible
action on CUP.
2 Lost Rock application.pdf

Staff report 2 lost rock fill cupkk.pdf

6c.Discussion and possible action on application for 12 Swallow Lane - Septic Variance
12 Swallow Lane - Septic Variance Materials.pdf

Variance PC 12 Swallow Lane (002).pdf

8.  Commissioner Report(s)

9.  Adjourn

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003831/grading_diagrams.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003832/renderings.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1004792/Staff_report_12_Cherrywood_fill_cupkk.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1004793/Staff_report_12_Cherrywood-_Garage_CUPkk.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003837/2_Lost_Rock_application.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1004820/Staff_report_2_lost_rock_fill_cupkk.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003970/12_Swallow_Lane_-_Septic_Variance_Materials.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1003971/Variance_PC_12_Swallow_Lane__002_.pdf


North Oaks Planning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

City of North Oaks Community Meeting Room and Via Teleconference 

June 24, 2021 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Chair Azman called the meeting of June 24, 2021, to order at 7:03 p.m. 

 

Pursuant to Minnesota Statute 13D.021, the meeting was conducted via Zoom, with Chair 

Azman and Administrator Kress present in the Council Chambers. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Chair Mark Azman, Commissioners Anne Conroy, David Cremons, Stig Hauge, Grover 

Sayre III (joined at 7:05 p.m.) Joyce Yoshimura-Rank.  

Absent: Nick Sandell  

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, City Engineer Tim Korby, City Attorney Jim 

Thomson. 

Others: City Councilor Jim Hara joined at 7:20 p.m. 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Azman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

There were no citizen comments. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Hauge, to approve the agenda. Motion carried 

unanimously by roll call. 

 

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MONTH’S MINUTES 

a. Approval of April 29, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

Commissioner Cremons asked about the outcome on the meeting minutes conversation. 

Administrator Kress clarified that city staff would be taking minutes going forward, and that they 

would be minimized. The only exception would be for meetings that have to do with larger 

public hearings for new developments or other controversial issues. In those cases, Timesavers 

would be utilized. 

 

MOTION by Cremons, seconded by Yoshimura-Rank to approve the agenda. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS 

3



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  June 24, 2021 
 

Page | 2 

a. Public Hearing Conditional Use Permit for a home in excess of 35 feet in height for 

property located at 16 Cherrywood Circle. 

 

Chair Azman opened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. and read the notice posted in the newspaper. 

He asked Attorney Jim Thomson to give an overview of the planning commission’s obligations 

when making a recommendation on Conditional Use Permits, and the standard of law or decision 

that the Commission will apply. 

 

Thomson explained that land uses fall within one of three categories: Permitted meaning they are 

allowed as a matter of right and there is no approval required; Conditional Uses, which are uses 

allowed under the code but subject to certain conditions; and Variances, which are requests made 

by an applicant that are not allowed within the code. In the case set forth at the meeting, 

Commissioners must look at the whether the applicant has met the conditions as outlined within 

the code to determine if the Conditional Use Permit may be granted. 

 

Administrator Kress provided a staff report. He gave an overview of the six conditions as 

outlined by the city code, Section 151.050(D)(7) of the Zoning Ordinance, and noted that the 

plans for the home at 16 Cherrywood Circle meets all the conditions. Based on the review, City 

Staff recommended approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit subject to the following 

conditions: 

1.  The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 5/27/21 

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards prior 

to the issuance of a building permit. 

3. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of 

construction. 

4. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

5. Comments of other City Staff. 

 

City Engineer Korby said he has visited the site and agrees with all recommendations by the City 

Staff.  

 

Jennifer Otto, Architectural Designer from Gonyea Homes spoke on behalf of the applicant. She 

expressed appreciation for consideration. She noted that the house plans have also been reviewed 

and approved by the Architectural Supervisory Committee with the North Oaks Homeowners 

Association. 

 

Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank asked what the square footage and FAR is on the home. Otto 

said that the house is well within the FAR requirement. The home is 4300 square feet on a lot of 

approximately 2.3 acres.  

 

Commissioner Cremons asked about the need for additional height based on ceiling height 

expectations for high end homes. He noted that the elevation difference appeared to be related to 

the central peak, which did not seem necessary to maintain ceiling height. Otto clarified that the 

4



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  June 24, 2021 
 

Page | 3 

central peak is not the highest building elevation for the house, and that it does not exceed the 

front to back pitch which is indicative of the overall building height. When taller ceiling heights 

are combined with thicker floor systems, floor tresses are often put in in order to pass HVAC 

systems through the floor system so drop ceilings are not necessary in lower levels. That in 

combination with walk-out conditions make it difficult to meet the 35 foot threshold at the walk-

out inside elevations. 

 

Commissioner Sayre asked if the driver in this case is that the lot slopes a bit. Otto confirmed 

that that is the main driving force with this particular building height. 

 

MOTION by Sayre, seconded by Yoshimura-Rank, to open the public hearing/public 

comment portion at 7:30 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  

 

There were no public comments. 

  

MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Cremons, to close the public hearing/public 

comment time at 7:32 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  

 

b. Discussion and possible action on Conditional Use Permit for property located at 16 

Cherrywood Circle. 

 

Commissioner Cremons asked Attorney Thomson for clarification on whether the Commission 

has any discretion to reject a Conditional Use Permit application unless one of the factual 

findings in the staff report is wrong. Thomson agreed that in this particular case, where the 

criteria are objective and straightforward to determine, there is not much discretion left to the 

Planning Commission with respect to its recommendation. 

 

Commissioner Cremons commented that adherence to the codes is important, and making 

exceptions may lead people to citing exceptions as a new set of rules. He noted that it does not 

apply in this case because the applicant has met the criteria, but generally cautioned that the 

Planning Commission should watch out for letting height requirements slide upward in the 

future.   

 

Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank commented that although there was a note made in the 

application that the variation to the ordinance will go virtually unnoticed due to the heavily 

wooded nature in the back of the home, there is never a guarantee that homeowners will maintain 

a wooded lot. She expressed concern about using that type of reasoning when considering 

applications such as these. 

 

Administrator Kress noted that homeowners do need to comply with NOHOA’s new policy 

around tree removals, which would prevent clearcutting in such circumstances. Kress noted that 

in this instance, the reference to tree coverage was actually intended to indicate that there will be 

less light pollution noise because of the size of the trees surrounding the property.  

5



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  June 24, 2021 
 

Page | 4 

 

MOTION by Sayre, seconded by Conroy to approve the Conditional Use Permit 

application for 16 Cherrywood Circle with conditions as listed by City Staff. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

Chair Azman noted that the recommendation will go before the Council at their next meeting on 

July 8, 2021. 

 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 

There were no reports. 

 

Chair Azman noted that the next meeting of the Planning Commission will be on July 29, 2021.  

 

Commissioner Cremons asked about when and under what conditions will the Commission begin 

meeting at city hall. Administrator Kress said that City Council had discussed that they will wait 

until the State of Minnesota lifts the emergency order. Until that point, the Commission will 

continue to meet in a hybrid meeting. 

 

Chair Azman asked what the Commission’s thoughts are about meeting in person. He noted that 

he would like to see the meetings happen in person again as soon as possible. Commissioner 

Cremons, Sayre and Yoshimura-Rank agreed. Administrator Kress said he would mention it to 

City Council at their July meeting to see if their perspective had changed. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Hauge, to adjourn the Planning Commission 

meeting at 7:45 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

____________________________ _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Mark Azman, Chair  

 

Date approved____________ 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



Members of the planning commission – 

 

This proposal is seeking a Conditional Use Permit for the construction of a new single-family 

residence at 12 Cherrywood Circle. The CUP is seeking approval for two purposes: 

 

1. A garage in excess of 1,500 SF.  

a. The proposed garage is two separate spaces – a three car garage which is 796 

NSF, and an adjacent workshop with a single garage door that is 831 NSF. 

Combined the total is 1,627 NSF. Please see attached floor plans and renderings 

showing the integration of the structure with the larger architectural composition 

and its relationship to the remainder of the site.  

2. Land reclamation.  

a. The site as it currently exists contains within it a low point between two hills with no 

drainage, which will likely create problems with drainage, foundation integrity 

and insects if it is not properly diverted. The proposed plan will fill some of this 

depressed area to accommodate a new driveway and raise the level of the 

natural depression on one end and cut a swale towards the adjacent swamp to 

naturally drain the site through an area with no mature trees and relatively little 

topographic modification. This fill and grading will likely commence in the spring 

of 2022 and will be completed by the end of the summer. Some of the affected 

area will be planted with restorative prairie seed appropriate to the local 

ecosystem and the remainder will either be turf or fescue. Approximate fill 

amount will be between 200-500 cubic feet of quality fill soil. Please see attached 

survey, demo plan, and site plan for location of new swale adjacent to the new 

home and site.  

 

I look forward to meeting with the commission and answering any questions they may have 

about the proposed project. Thank you for your time.  

 

Michael and Christina Hara 

 

w:\forms\corres2018\normal.dotm 

26



DN

A

G

A400

1

B

C

F

1

1

3

3

4

4

5

5

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

A4002

912 SF

WORKSHOP

114

798 SF

GARAGE

115

104 SF

MUDROOM

116

18 SF

COATS

117

155 SF

GALLERY

118

446 SF

FAMILY

119

33 SF

POWDER

120

90 SF

PANTRY

121

185 SF

KITCHEN

122

313 SF

DINING

123 326 SF

LIVING

124

104 SF

LAUNDRY

125

241 SF

MASTER BEDROOM

126

90 SF

MASTER CLOSET

127

167 SF

MASTER BATH

128

41 SF

SAUNA

129

24 SF

TOILET

130

A401 1

A401

2

-

-

6

A410

6

A410

2

2

-

-

A1017

A1018

A101

9

A101

10

A10111

A101

12

A101

13

A101

14

A10115

A101

17

A101

18

A101

19

A101

20

A101

21

A101 22

A101 5

A101

29

A101 30

A101 31

A101

6

1

A410

1

A410

D

A10116

H

-

---

3

A411

3

A411

6

6

2

A410

2

A410

3

A410

3

A410

4

A410

4

A410

5

A410

5

A410

2

A411

2

A411

1

A411

1

A411

ALIGN

7

A410

7

A410

-

---

-

---

---

-

fireplace

27
' -

 6
"

9'
 -

 0
 5

/8
"

13
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

34
' -

 0
"

6'
 -

 4
 1

1/
16

"

8'
 -

 0
 5

/8
"

41' - 9 3/4"15' - 6"

---

-

E

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

18
' -

 0
"

Scale

Project number

Date

S
T

U
D

IO
 H

A
R

A
A

rc
h
it
e

c
t:

 M
ic

h
a

e
l 
H

a
ra

m
ic

h
a

e
l.
j.
h

a
ra

@
g

m
a
il.

c
o

m
6

5
1

.2
6
0

.8
9

7
6

1
2

 C
h
e

rr
y
w

o
o

d
 C

ir
c
le

N
o

rt
h

 O
a

k
s
, 

M
N

 5
5
1

2
7

C
H

E
R

R
Y

W
O

O
D

 H
O

U
S

E

Drawn MH

1/4" = 1'-0"

7
/1

7
/2

0
2
1

 4
:2

0
:0

0
 P

MA201

FIRST FLOOR
PLAN

Project Number

Issue Date

1/4" = 1'-0"
1

MAIN LEVEL

27



MAIN FLOOR FFE
923.66

BASEMENT FFE
913.83'

CUT

FILL
LOW POINT ON SITE - NO POSITIVE DRAINAGE ANYWHERE.

28



MAIN FLOOR FFE
923.66

BASEMENT FFE
913.83'

CUT

FILL
LOW POINT ON SITE - NO POSITIVE DRAINAGE ANYWHERE.

29



MAIN FLOOR FFE
923.66

BASEMENT FFE
913.83'

CUT

FILL
LOW POINT ON SITE - NO POSITIVE DRAINAGE ANYWHERE.

30



MAIN FLOOR FFE
923.66

BASEMENT FFE
913.83'

CUT

FILL
LOW POINT ON SITE - NO POSITIVE DRAINAGE ANYWHERE.

31



MAIN FLOOR FFE
923.66

BASEMENT FFE
913.83'

CUT

FILL
LOW POINT ON SITE - NO POSITIVE DRAINAGE ANYWHERE.

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomsen, City Attorney, Tim Korby, 

City Engineer, Bob Kirmis, City Planner 
DATE:  July 20, 2021 
RE:  12 Cherrywood Circle - Conditional Use Permit  
  Fill in excess of 100 cubic yards 
 

Date Application Submitted   June 29, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete: June 29, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  July 29, 2021 

City Council Meeting Date:   August 12, 2021 

60-day review Date:    August 29, 2021 

120-day Review Date:   October 27, 2021 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Hara family has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow for fill in 

excess of 100 cubic yards at their property located at 12 Cherrywood Circle.  

The subject 2.39-acre site is zoned RSL PUD, Residential Single-Family Low Density. 

Within RSL Districts, fill in excess of 100 cubic yards is subject to conditional use permit 

processing. 

The applicant wishes to perform landscaping as part of a new home construction. 

Specifically, to support and encourage positive drainage away from the home. 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 

40



 

 

 Exhibit D: Site Plan 

 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract F RLS 629.   

Evaluation Criteria.  Land reclamation involving 100 cubic yards or more of soil shall 

require a conditional use permit as provided in § 151.076, of the Zoning Ordinance 

states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a Staff 

response, is provided below: 

a. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project has no impact to the Comprehensive Plan and is 

consistent thereof. 

b. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be 

located. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project has no impact on adjacent land, and instead 

creates a more original topography. 

c. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project does not depreciate the area in which it is 

proposed. 

d. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, 

streets, and highways. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project has no impact. 

e. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other 

land in the neighborhood. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project will not disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment 

of other land in the neighborhood. 

41



 

 

f. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will 

be available in the near future. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

g. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of 

this chapter. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

h. The effect upon natural drainage patterns onto and from the site 

Staff Comment. Site grading will fill a low spot and regrade to allow flow to the east. 

Final grading, drainage and erosion control plans will be subject to review and approval 

by the City Engineer as part of building permit application.  As part of such plan review, a 

finding must be made that the proposed use will not have any negative effects on 

drainage. 

i. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public 

health, safety, comfort, convenience, or general welfare of the 

neighborhood or the city. 

Staff Comment. The proposed project will not be detrimental to or endanger the public 

health, safety, comfort, convenience, or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city. 

j. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public 

cost for public facilities and services and whether or not the use will be 

detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

Staff Comment. The proposed project does not create additional requirements at public 

cost for public facilities and services nor is it detrimental to the economic welfare of the 

neighborhood or city.  

k. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve 

uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of 

operation that will be detrimental to any persons, land, or the general 

welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, 

wastes, toxins, glare, or odors. 

 

Staff Comment. The proposed project is environmentally sound and will not involve 

uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 

42



 

 

detrimental to any persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production 

of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or odors. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional 

use permit to allow for fill in excess of 100 cubic yards at 12 Cherrywood Circle subject 

to the following conditions: 

1. The home and landscaping shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 6-

29-21 unless agreed to by the City Engineer.  

2. Plans shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to the beginning of construction. 

3. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

4. Comments of other City Staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the contents 

of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 

to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 

▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

perform the project, as proposed, subject to the satisfaction of all imposed 

conditions. 

B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff report, 

received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the conditional 

use permit proposal. 

C) Table the request for further study. 

43



 

 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 

appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 

amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 

 

cc: Michael Hara, Home Owner 

 Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Executive Director 

  

 

 

44



   
 

 
 

 
 

 

PLANNING REPORT  
 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 

 

FROM:  Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomsen, City Attorney, Tim 

Korby, City Engineer, Bob Kirmis, City Planner 

 

DATE:  July 20, 2021 

 
RE:  12 Cherrywood Circle - Conditional Use Permit  
  Garage in excess of 1,500 square feet (Chad Wojtowick) 
 
Date Application Submitted   June 29, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete:  June 29, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  July 29, 2021 

City Council Meeting Date:    August 12, 2021 

60-day review Date: August 29, 2021 

120-day Review Date:    October 27, 2021 

 
 
BACKGROUND 

 

The Hara family has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow the 

construction of a home at 12 Cherrywood Circle which includes garage space which 

exceeds 1,500 square feet. 

 

The subject 2.39-acre site is zoned RSL PUD, Residential Single-Family Low Density. 

Within RSL Districts, attached or detached garage space which exceeds 1,500 square 

feet is subject to conditional use permit processing. 

 

The applicant wishes to construct two attached garages (one proposed for 

woodworking), totaling 1,627 square feet.   

 

Attached for reference: 

 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

45



 

2 
 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 
 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 
 Exhibit D: Site Plan 
 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

 Exhibit F: Engineering Comments 
 
ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract F RLS 629.   

 

Evaluation Criteria.  In consideration of conditional use permit applications to allow 

garage space greater than 1,500 square feet, Section 151.050(D)(9) of the Zoning 

Ordinance states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a 

Staff response, is provided below: 

 

a. The garage shall not exceed 3,000 square feet. 
 

Staff Comment.  The amount of proposed accessory garage space on the site 

totals 1,627 square feet which is within the maximum amount of accessory 

garage space allowed by the Ordinance.  This condition has been satisfied. 
 

b. The garage shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the 
principal building or structure. 

 

Staff Comment.  In this regard, the garages exhibit roofs and finish materials 

(stone) which mimic the design of the home. 

 

c. The floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.12.  
 

Staff Comment.  
This has been satisified. The current FAR is less than 5%. 

 
d. No use of the garage shall be permitted other than private residential non-

commercial use. 
 

Staff Comment.  As a condition of conditional use permit approval, the proposed 
garages must only be used for private residential non-commercial use. In this 
regard, any sale of woodworking products is not allowed on the site. 

 

e. The factors set forth in 151.076(C) (Conditional Use Permits) shall be 
considered. 

 

46



 

3 
 

Staff Comment.  Section 151.076(C) of the Ordinance directs the Planning 

Commission to consider the following factors in consideration of all conditional 

use permit applications: 

 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

Finding.  The subject site is guided and zoned to accommodate single 

family detached dwellings on large lots (a minimum of 1.45 acres).  The 

Zoning Ordinance, which is intended to implement the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan, lists accessory garages which exceed 1,500 square 

feet is size as a permitted use subject to conditional use permit 

processing.  

 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is 

to be located. 

  

Finding.  The subject site is located in the RSL, Residential Single-Family 

Low Density zoning district which is intended to accommodate large 

homes on large lots.  The subject site is similar in size and character to 

other lots in the neighborhood. 

 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is 

proposed. 

 

Finding.  The proposed home is not expected to depreciate the area in 

which it is proposed. The proposed home may, in fact, appreciate area 

home values. The proposed layout shields the garage door entrances 

from neighboring streets. 

 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the premises and on adjoining 

roads or highways. 

 

Finding.  Traffic generated by the new home is within the capabilities of 

Cherrywood Circle which serves the property. 

 

5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of 

other property in the neighborhood. 

 

Finding.  Provided certain conditions are imposed to minimize potential 

impacts, the proposed accessory garage space will not disrupt the 

reasonable use and enjoyment of other properties in the neighborhood. 

47



 

4 
 

 

6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, and other facilities exist or will be 

available in the near future. 

 

Finding.  The proposed use would not place any burdens or additional 

public costs upon municipal or private infrastructure. 

 

7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the 

provisions of this chapter. 

 

Finding.  Home plans will be required to comply with applicable provisions 

of the Zoning Ordinance as well as the State Building Code (as a condition 

of building permit issuance). 

 

8.  The effect upon natural drainage patterns onto and from the site. 

 

Finding.  Site grading will fill a low spot and regrade to allow flow to the 

east. Final grading, drainage and erosion control plans will be subject to 

review and approval by the City Engineer as part of building permit 

application.  As part of such plan review, a finding must be made that the 

proposed use will not have any negative effects on drainage. 

 

9. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the 

public health, safety, comfort, convenience, or general welfare of the 

neighborhood or the city;  

 

Finding.  The proposed use is not anticipated to endanger the public 

health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare of the 

neighborhood or City. 

 

10. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at 

public cost for public facilities and services and whether or not the 

use will be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood 

or city; and  

 

Finding.  The proposed use will not create additional public cost for public 

facilities and services nor be detrimental to the economic welfare of the 

neighborhood. 

 

11. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not 

involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, land, 

48



 

5 
 

or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, 

noise, smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or odors. 

 

 Finding.  The proposed use will not be detrimental to any persons, land, or 

the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 

smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or odors. 

 

Lighting.  Lighting shall not negatively impact adjacent homes as part of building permit 

application. 

 

According to Section 151.031 of the Ordinance, exterior lighting in all residential zoning 

districts must be arranged so that it does not interfere with the reasonable use and 

enjoyment of surrounding land or constitute a hazard to vehicular traffic on all roads, 

streets, and public highways.  

 

The Ordinance further states that exterior lighting must be designed and directed so that 

there is no direct viewing angle of the illumination source from surrounding land. 

 

It is recommended that the preceding requirements be imposed as conditions of 

conditional use permit approval. 

 

Setbacks.  The proposed home, as well as garage driveway areas, lie outside the 

required 30-foot setback from all property lines. 

 

Grading, Drainage and Utilities.  As a condition of conditional use permit approval, it 

is recommended that grading, drainage and erosion control plan be subject to review 

and approval by the City Engineer. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested 
conditional use permit to allow the accessory garage space for a home located at 12 
Cherrywood Circle to exceed 1,500 square feet subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. In accordance with square footage reference in the applicant’s narrative, a 

combined total of 1,627 square feet of accessory garage space shall be allowed 

upon the subject property. 

 

2. The garage shall be used only for private residential non-commercial use. 

 

3. The garages shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the principal 

building (per the submitted building elevation). 

 

49



 

6 
 

4. Exterior lighting upon the subject site shall be arranged so that it does not 
interfere with the reasonable use and enjoyment of surrounding land or constitute 
a hazard to vehicular traffic on all roads, streets, and public highways. 
 

5. Exterior lighting shall be designed and directed so that there is no direct viewing 

angle of the illumination source from surrounding land. 

 
6. The grading, drainage and erosion control plan shall be subject to review and 

approval by the City Engineer. 

 
7. Comments of other City Staff. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the 
contents of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning 
Commission. 

 
▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal 

adheres to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 
 
▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

construct the proposed accessory garages, as proposed, subject to the 
satisfaction of all imposed conditions. 

 
B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff 

report, received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning 
Commission. 

 
▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the 
conditional use permit proposal. 

 
C) Table the request for further study. 
 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 
appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 
amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 
Additional comments: 

 

50



 

7 
 

FLOOR AREA RATIO (FAR). The ratio of the TOTAL FLOOR AREA of all buildings 
to the GROSS LOT AREA, excluding 2/3 of any WETLAND. 

 
TOTAL FLOOR AREA. The total area of all stories, as determined using exterior 

dimensions, including garages that are not part of the BASEMENT, clerestory 
area and covered porches and decks. 

 
GROSS LOT AREA. Total area of a platted lot excluding road easement(s). 
 
BUILDING. A structure designed primarily for human use or occupancy, including 

businesses, offices, educational facilities, medical facilities, residences, and 
institutions. Decks, overhangs, porches, or similar attached structures are 
considered part of the building. BUILDING does not include appurtenances 
required to operate or maintain pipeline systems. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

cc: Michael Hara, Home Owner 

 Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Executive Director 

  

 

51



52



53



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomsen, City Attorney, Tim Korby, 

City Engineer, Bob Kirmis, City Planner 
DATE:  July 22, 2021 
RE:  2 Lost Rock Lane - Conditional Use Permit  
  Fill in excess of 100 cubic yards 
 

Date Application Submitted   June 18, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete: June 29, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  July 29, 2021 

City Council Meeting Date:   August 12, 2021 

60-day review Date:    August 29, 2021 

120-day Review Date:   October 27, 2021 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Emerson family has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow for 

fill in excess of 100 cubic yards at their property located at 2 Lost Rock Lane.  

The subject 1.32-acre site is zoned RSL, Residential Single-Family Low Density. Within 

RSL Districts, fill in excess of 100 cubic yards is subject to conditional use permit 

processing. 

The applicant wishes to perform landscaping as part of a new home construction. 

Specifically, to support the elevation of a pool deck and landscaping. 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 

54



 

 

 Exhibit D: Site Plan 

 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract W RLS 6224.   

Evaluation Criteria.  Land reclamation involving 100 cubic yards or more of soil shall 

require a conditional use permit as provided in § 151.076, of the Zoning Ordinance 

states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a Staff 

response, is provided below: 

a. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project has no impact to the Comprehensive Plan and is 

consistent thereof. 

b. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be 

located. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project has no impact on adjacent land, and instead 

creates a more original topography. 

c. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project does not depreciate the area in which it is 

proposed. 

d. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, 

streets, and highways. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project has no impact. 

e. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other 

land in the neighborhood. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed project will not disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment 

of other land in the neighborhood. 

55



 

 

f. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will 

be available in the near future. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

g. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of 

this chapter. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

h. The effect upon natural drainage patterns onto and from the site 

Staff Comment. The site fill is predominately for the basement level void from the 

previous house. Grading ties into existing contours within property limits and should not 

have a significantly affect natural drainage patterns. Final grading, drainage and erosion 

control plans will be subject to review and approval by the City Engineer as part of 

building permit application.  As part of such plan review, a finding must be made that the 

proposed use will not have any negative effects on drainage plan shows grading limits. 

i. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public 

health, safety, comfort, convenience, or general welfare of the 

neighborhood or the city. 

Staff Comment. The proposed project will not be detrimental to or endanger the public 

health, safety, comfort, convenience, or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city. 

j. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public 

cost for public facilities and services and whether or not the use will be 

detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

Staff Comment. The proposed project does not create additional requirements at public 

cost for public facilities and services nor is it detrimental to the economic welfare of the 

neighborhood or city.  

k. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve 

uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of 

operation that will be detrimental to any persons, land, or the general 

welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, 

wastes, toxins, glare, or odors. 

 

56



 

 

Staff Comment. The proposed project is environmentally sound and will not involve 

uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 

detrimental to any persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production 

of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or odors. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional 

use permit to allow for fill in excess of 100 cubic yards at 2 Lost Rock Lane subject to the 

following conditions: 

1. The home and landscaping shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 6-

17-21 unless agreed to by the City Engineer.  

2. Plans shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to the beginning of construction. 

3. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

4. Comments of other City Staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the contents 

of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 

to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 

▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

perform the project, as proposed, subject to the satisfaction of all imposed 

conditions. 

B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff report, 

received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the conditional 

use permit proposal. 

57



 

 

C) Table the request for further study. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 

appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 

amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 

 

cc: Geoffrey Emerson, Home Owner 

 Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Executive Director 

  

 

 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 

 

July 16, 2021 

VARIANCE  21-9 

Phillips-Shah Residence 

12 Swallow Lane 

North Oaks, MN 55127 

RSL Zoning 

 

 
Date Application Determined Complete: July 16, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date July 27, 2021 

City Council Meeting Date:   

120 Day Review Date:    

 

 

Description of Request 

The applicant is requesting a variance to install a primary sub-surface sewage treatment system 

(SSTS), which would encroach 4 feet into the required 30 foot north property line setback, a 

variance for the future SSTS to encroach 30 feet into the required 30 foot north property line 

setback, and a variance of 4,400 square feet from the required 5,000 square foot areas for both 

the primary and future SSTS’s.  

 

The applicable regulations are as follows: 

 

§ 151.050 RSL - RESIDENTIAL SINGLE-FAMILY LOW DENSITY DISTRICT. 
 (F) Setbacks. 

  (1) No building or structure (except fences, screening, planting strips, and 

landscaping in compliance with Sections 151.033 and 151.034), individual 

sewage treatment system, or well shall be located within thirty (30) feet of the lot 

lines, the nearest edge of any road easement(s), or any wetland(s), except that 

additions which do not exceed twenty five (25) percent of the existing building 

footprint area, on buildings or structures lawfully existing upon the effective date 

of this chapter shall be excluded from wetland setback requirements. 

 

§ 51.02 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 (5) Site Evaluation, System Design, Construction, Inspection, and Servicing 

  (a) At the time of subdivision, development, or redevelopment, the developer of 

each lot, which will not be serviced by municipal sanitary sewer, shall identify 2 

sites, each 5,000 square feet in size, for the purpose of sewage treatment and 

dispersal. These sites, as identified by the developer, shall be protected from all 

future encroachment by any improvements, construction, or other activities that 

may result in compaction or disturbance of soil on the site, other than the 

installation of a sewage treatment system.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

88



 

VARIANCE 21-9 

July 16, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

Staff Review 

This property had been previously developed and the re-construction of the house will be in the 

same vicinity as the existing house.  The area available for the installation of a replacement and 

future system is severely limited due to water supply wells, structures, impervious areas, steep 

slopes, drainage ways, and property lines. This area appears to be the only viable location for the 

primary and future SSTS’s.  Based on these facts, it is the staff’s opinion that the applicant has 

met the requirements for a variance as outlined in Section 151.078 of the code. This is a hardship 

created by the property itself and not the result of actions of the property owner. If the property 

owner chose not to re-construct the house, the same setback variances would still be required; the 

variances from the required square footage would not be required.  Additionally, this work will 

eliminate a non-compliant cesspool system. We are in agreement with the designer, Steve 

Schirmers, that the proposed location of the SSTS’s appears to be the most viable location for a 

primary and secondary SSTS.  This would be the minimum variance, which would alleviate the 

practical difficulties.  

 

Action Requested 

That the Planning Commission make a recommendation to the City Council to approve or deny 

Variance #21-9 to allow the primary SSTS to encroach 4 feet into the required 30 foot north 

property line setback, to allow the secondary SSTS to encroach 30 feet into the north property 

line set-back, and allow a 600 square foot area for a primary SSTS and the secondary SSTS. 

 

Motions 

 

Motion to Approve 

 

 

MOTION____________________________SECOND__________________________________ 

 

That Variance #21-9, for 12 Swallow Lane:  

   

be APPROVED with the following conditions: 

1. Completion date 365 days after approval  

2. Primary and future SSTS’s to be located per the design dated July 24, 2021 by Steve 

Schirmers. 

 

Motion to Deny 

 

 

MOTION____________________________ SECOND_________________________________ 

 

That Variance #21-9, for 12 Swallow Lane:   

 

be DENIED with the following findings: 

 1.  

 

89



 

VARIANCE 14-06 

June 19, 2014 

Page 3 

 

 2. 

90


	Planning Commission Agenda
	Item 6a.   - Planning Commission Minutes 06.24.21.pdf
	Item 6a. - 12 CHerrywood CIrcle.pdf
	Item 6a. - CUP - Cover Letter.pdf
	Item 6a. - A201 - First Floor Plan.pdf
	Item 6a. - grading_diagrams.pdf
	Item 6a. - renderings.pdf
	Item 6a. - Staff report 12 Cherrywood fill cupkk.pdf
	Item 6a. - Staff report 12 Cherrywood- Garage CUPkk.pdf
	Item 6b. - 2 Lost Rock application.pdf
	Item 6b. - Staff report 2 lost rock fill cupkk.pdf
	Item 6c. - 12 Swallow Lane - Septic Variance Materials.pdf
	Item 6c. - Variance PC 12 Swallow Lane (002).pdf



